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Its terrain was and is relatively flat at about 180 feet above sea level. The origi-
nal town plat consisted of one hundred blocks which were subdivided into lots (Index
to Colbert Deeds), but additional blocks were added soon after the initial land sale
in 1835 (Columbus Democrat, August 6, 1836). Deed records and other sources indicate
that the Colbert ferry and business district were located in the southeast corner of

town, and an old ferry landing is still visible there. The Colbert Academy stood
outside the town

Populous enough to be incorporated as a town
Colbert community did not survive much longer. After an extensive river flood in

December, 1847, Co was superseded by the to of Barton, which was established
on higher groun . Flooding has continued
periodically at Colbert to the present day, and the remains of the town now lie

buried under river silt. Little or no plowing has been done on the site, and the
remains are probably well preserved
The Barto =

'is primarily hilly, although a portion is level and at
the same altitude as Colbert (ca. 180 feet). Incorporated in 1854, Barton soon met
with the same problem that had beset the town of Colbert: in December, 1857, the
lower levels of the town were flooded by the Tombigbee River. Bypassed by the Mobile
and Ohio Railroad in the same month, Barton began a decline which culminated in the
removal of its post office to the neighboring town of Vinton in April, 1858.

When Zachary Ellis moved to the Barton area in 1900 to operate the Barton ferry,
he found a number of old structures still standing, but most were soon swept away by
another flood. Today the lower levels of Barton are, like Colbert, covered with silt.
But on the hilly portions which constitute the majority of the Barton townsite, remains
are plainly evident. O0ld streets, cisterns, and the ruins of chimneys can be seen, and
local resident G. E the locations of the Barton warehouse and
pthe business district
and the old stagecoach road to Aberdeen. Observations confirm that
ittle or no plowing has been done on the Barton townsite, and, as at Colbert, under-
ground remains are probably in a good state of preservation.

A small Greek Revival house, ambitious in detail for its size and location, remains .
intact as the only building that has survived from old Barton. Standing on a foundation -
of brick piers, the one-story, three-bay frame structure, known in recent times as
"Cedar Oaks,'" consists of a center hall flanked by two primary chambers, behind which
smaller chambers flank an original rear gallery which has been enclosed to provide
additional hall space. The broken-pitch gable roof extends over the front gallery,
where it is supported by four square wooden columns. The sides and rear of the
building are sheathed with clapboards, while flush boards and a chair rail distin-
guish the facade elevation. The six-panel front door, surrounded by simple side-
lights and transom, is flanked by four-over-four sash windows. The plain molded
chair rail also graces the interior spaces, where simple baseboards, two ambitiously
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Colbert and Barton townsites in Clay County, Mississippi, contain the
well-preserved archaeological remains of two of the earliest towns established
in the portion of old Lowndes Countymter that area
was opened for settlement by the Tre 0 . oth townsh
» derived their prosperity from the trade that developed
uic in river port towns surrounded by the fertile cotton lands
of northeast Mississippi. Because Barton literally succeeded
Colbert in settlement, because neither town was inhabited for an extended period,
and because both communities met with virtually the same end after disastrous
river floods, archaeological investigations of the two sites could provide a
valuable means of determining the cultural changes which occurred from one loca-
tion and time period to another. Due to the fact that little or no plowing has
ever disturbed either townsite, the remains of Colbert and Barton have been well
preserved under layers of river silt deposited by successive floods (Elliott,
p. 106). The buried remains deserve continued protection as important untapped
resources for historical archaeology in Mississippi.

The town of Colbert has traditionally been accepted as the first community
founded in the section of Clay County that was still a part of Lowndes County in

the 1830s when settlement began there, m
] Phe site the Colbert settlers chose for their town

Iocation of a ferry which had been operated by Macajah Bennett and
later by Silas McBee (Minutes of the Board of Police, Lowndes County). The first
known sale of lots in the community was held in November, 1835. An 1836 adver-
tisement for an additional sale of lots declared that the town landing was the
"best known on the river above Columbus," and that a dense population would soon
be dependent upon the town for its supplies (Columbus Democrat, August 6, 1836)

In April, 1836, Colbert was established as a voting precinct for t
Lowndes Count

office was established at Colbert on March 24, 1838. In the same year the state

legis ed the Colbert Academy, the Colbert Troop, and a proposed
bridg isippi State Laws, 1838). By 1844,
Colbert had a nondenomin urch, which according to deed records

was a thriving institution by 1847 (Index to Colbert Deeds).

Colbert was incorporated as a town in 1846 (Mississippi State Laws, 1846),
but its life as a municipality was cut short in December, 1847, by an extensive
river flood from which the community never recovered (Rodabough, January 9, 1975).
In 1848 the remaining Colbert residents were among those who founded the new town
of Barton on higher ground north of the Colbert site.l
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7 - DESCRIPTION

carved vernacular wooden mantels, and original six-panel doors complete the orna-
mentation. Walls and cellings .of the two primary chambers are plastered, as is
the ceiling of the center hall, and the original wide plank floors are extant
throughout the house, Cedar Oaks has been maintained and is now being renovated
for permanent occupancy by members of the Uithoven family of Clay County. J

8 - SIGNIFICANCE

Like Colbert, Barton had been the site of a ferry before a town was developed
there. J. H. Griswold owned and operated the ferry after 1851, while Barton was
a growing and thriving community. When Griswold sold the ferry rights to Bardine
Richardson in 1858 (Clay County Deed Book F, p. 544) and moved to the new town of
West Poin e was only one of many who gradually _

oung river town in favor of the new town ikt

Census records indicate that there were about 125 white inhabitants in Barton
in 1850, including three merchants, two clerks, three physicians, two steamboatmen,
one mechanic, four carpenters, one wheelwright, eight planters, one ferryman, one
stage driver, and one gunwright (1850 Census, Free Schedule). The town also con-
tained at least one warehouse, a hotel, and a Christian church (various deed rec-
ords) by the time it was incorporated in 1854 (Mississippi State Laws, 1854). But
the fate of Colbert was repeated at Barton when the lower levels of the town suffered
flood damage in December, 1857. In the same month the railroad was completed as far
as West Point (Daily Times Leader, July 11, 1958), and the two events together
spelled the demise of Barton. The collapse of the town was officially recognized
when the Barton post office was moved to nearby Vinton on April 17, 1858 (Oakley,

p. 47), and by the 1860s the people of Barton for the most part had moved to Vinton,
West Point, and other neighboring communities.

Cedar Oaks, a small but interesting vernacular house, is the only complete
structure still standing on one of the Barton town lots. Architectural evidence
suggests that the house was built around 1840-1850, probably predating the official
establishment of Barton as a town. Local tradition maintains that it was originally
the home of Bardine Richardson, who operated the Barton Ferry after 1858, but avail-
able records do not verify the tradition, and the physical evidence of the house itself

GPO 892 455
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8 - SIGNIFICANCE

indicates that the structure was already standing by the time Richardson purchased prop-
erty in and around Barton (Clay County Deed Books E, F, G). Jan Uithoven, the father

of the present owner of Cedar Oaks, purchased the house and surrounding property in

1913 and referred to it as "my homestead in Clay County, Mississippi," in his 1929 will
(Clay County Will Record 2, p. 184). Cedar Oaks is enhanced in significance as the

sole surviving example of the domestic architecture of the town of B s the
only intact above-ground material remnant of two once-bustling#owns.
The house is currently the subject of a preservation and restoration effort under the
direction of an owner who is concerned with the history and future of the Colbert and
Barton sites.

NOTES

lg11iott, p. 105: '"Date of the founding of Barton is based upon three soyrces:
(1) postal records which reveal that Colbert Post Office became Barton Post Office
on April 6, 1848 (see Oakley, p. 47); ) Mississippi State Laws 1848 include an
act incorporating Barton Ferry at the 'own of Barton;' (3) an 1848 deed mentions
the 'Town of Barton.'"

2The major source for the entire text, including notes, is Jack Elliott, Jr.,
Appendix, A Cultural Resource Survey of the Aberdeen Lock and Dam and Canal Section
Areas of the Tennessee-Tombigbee Waterway: 1975.
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4 - OWNER OF PROPERTY

Colbert:

Mrs. A. C. Ellis
Calhoun Street A
West Point, Mississippi %71
Mrs. A. D. Simmons, Sr.

East Main Street

West Point, Mississippi 3011

Barton:

Mr. Felix E. Uithoven
Columbus 1
Mississippi %"

Mr. Gys E. Uithoven
Columbus 3
Mississippi 4%

Mrs. A. C. Ellis
Calhoun Street %4\5
West Point, Mississippi ™'

Mrs. A. D. Simmons, Sr.
East Main Street AN
West Point, Mississippi »#°

Ms—Leuvise—tr—PBanriets—

(no address) &
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